
Meeting of:  Audit and Governance Hearing Sub-Committee
Date: Monday, 17th December, 2018
Time: 11.00 am.
Venue: Committee Rooms 1 & 2 - Rochdale Town Hall

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1. APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence.

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal or personal 
and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of those interests relating to 
items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992 applies to them.   

3.  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to be excluded 
from the meeting.

4.  CONSIDERATION OF AN INVESTIGATION IN CONNECTION WITH 
THE CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS 

2 - 105

4a. AUDIT & GOVERNANCE SUB-COMMITTEE HEARINGS 
PROCEDURE 

106 - 110

 

Audit and Governance Hearing Sub-Committee Members
Councillor Ali Ahmed
Councillor Peter Malcolm (Chair)
Councillor James Gartside

For more information about this meeting, please contact Elaine Newsome
elaine.newsome@rochdale.gov.uk

Public Document Pack

mailto:elaine.newsome@rochdale.gov.uk


Report to Audit & Governance Hearing Sub-Committee

Date of Meeting 17 December 2018
Portfolio Corporate & Resources
Report Author David Wilcock

Monitoring Officer
Public/Private Document Public

Consideration of an investigation in connection with the Code of 
Conduct for Members

Executive Summary

1. Several complaints were received earlier this year in connection with the 
conduct of a Member of the Council. An investigation was commissioned by 
the Monitoring Officer. The conclusions of the investigation are now to be 
considered by Members in accordance with Council procedures.

Recommendation

2. That the Sub Committee considers and determines the complaints, in 
accordance with Council procedures.

Reason for Recommendation

3. The Sub Committee has delegated to it the responsibility to decide whether 
Councillor Brett, (AB) has failed to comply with paragraph 5 the Code of 
Conduct for Members (the Code) and if so what action (if any) should be 
taken.

Key Points for Consideration

4.

5.

6.

Several complaints were received by the Monitoring Officer through the course 
of April 2018 concerning the conduct of AB. Broadly, the allegations centred 
around comments made by him at a meeting of the Labour Group on the 
Council (the meeting) concerning the Council’s highway capital investment 
programme.

It appeared that, on 18 April, a sound recording of AB’s comments at the 
meeting appeared in the media. The recording was taken secretly. The 
publication of the recording prompted complainants to express concerns in 
several respects that the Subject Member had failed to comply with the Code. 

The Monitoring Officer determined that the allegations should be referred for 

Page 2

Agenda Item 4



7.

8.

an investigation and appointed Simon Goacher of Weightmans Solicitors to 
carry out the investigation on his behalf. Mr Goacher’s Report (the Report) 
consisting of  19 pages is appended to this covering report, along with a 
Schedule of Evidence running from items SG1 to SG 14. The Hearing 
Procedure is also appended.

It should be noted that the Sub-Committee is concerned only as to whether AB 
failed to comply with paragraph 5 of the Code (disrepute), as the Investigator 
concluded there had been no other breach of the Code. 

Alternatives Considered

There are no alternatives but to consider and determine the complaints in 
accordance with Council procedures.

Costs and Budget Summary

9. Not applicable to the consideration of the complaint.

Risk and Policy Implications

There are no policy implications. There are no specific risks identified.10.

Consultation

11. As set out in the Investigator’s Report.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

12. All background papers contain 
exempt information

N/A

For Further Information Contact: David Wilcock,  
David.Wilcock@Rochdale.Gov.UK

Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



1

ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE SUB-COMMITTEE HEARING PROCEDURE

PROCEDURE

1. The Chair of the Sub-Committee may agree to vary this procedure in any 
particular instance where they are of the opinion that such variation is necessary 
in the interests of fairness.

PRE-MEETING

2. The Head of Governance will arrange a pre-meeting with the Chair of the Sub-
Committee to ensure that all necessary preparations for the hearing have been 
made and to identify any particular procedural issues relating to the hearing. The 
Monitoring Officer or nominee may be present.

REPRESENTATION 

3. The Subject Member may be legally represented, or with the permission of the 
Sub-Committee, by another person. It is the responsibility of the Subject Member 
to arrange for their own representation.

LEGAL ADVICE TO THE SUB-COMMITTEE

4. The Sub-Committee may take legal or procedural advice from a Legal Adviser 
(who may be the Monitoring Officer or other legally qualified person) at any time 
during the Hearing or during the Sub-Committee’s deliberations. The substance 
of any advice given to the Sub-Committee will be shared with the Subject 
Member and Investigating Officer (IO), if they are present at the Hearing.

INTRODUCTIONS AND SETTING THE SCENE

5. At the start of the Hearing, the Chair of the Sub-Committee shall introduce each 
of the members of the Sub-Committee, the Subject Member (if present), the IO (if 
present), and the Monitoring Officer/Legal Adviser. The Chair will confirm that all 
present have received a copy of the relevant documents including a copy of the 
Investigating Officer’s Report. The Chair will then explain the procedure, which 
the Sub-Committee will follow. 

THE ROLE OF THE INDEPENDENT PERSON

6. The Independent Person is invited to attend the Hearing and their views must be 
sought and taken into consideration before the Sub-Committee takes any 
decision on whether the subject member’s conduct constitutes a failure to comply 

Page 106

Agenda Item 4a



2

with the Code of Conduct and as to any action to be taken following a finding of 
failure to comply with the Code of Conduct.    

PRELIMINARY PROCEDURAL ISSUES

7. The Sub-Committee shall deal with the following preliminary procedural matters:

a) Disclosures of interest

The Chair shall ask members of the Sub-Committee to disclose the existence and 
nature of any personal and/or prejudicial interests which they have in the matter, 
and to withdraw from consideration of the matter if so required.

b) Quorum

The Chair shall confirm that the Sub-Committee is quorate.

c) Exclusion of Press and Public

The Chair shall ask the Subject Member, the Investigator and the Legal Adviser to 
the Sub-Committee whether they wish to ask the Sub-Committee to exclude the 
Press or Public from all or any part of the Hearing.  If any of them so request, the 
Chair shall ask them to put forward reasons for so doing and ask for responses from 
the others and the Sub-Committee shall then determine whether to exclude the 
press and public from all or any part of the Hearing.

d) Hearing procedure

The Chair shall confirm that all present know the procedure which the Sub-
Committee will follow in determining the matter.

8. If the Subject Member is not present at the start of the hearing:

• The Chair will ask the Legal Adviser whether the Subject
Member has indicated his/her intention not to attend the hearing;

 The Sub-Committee shall then consider any reasons which the Subject 
Member has provided for not attending the hearing;

 If it is not satisfied with such reasons, or if the Subject Member has not given 
any such reasons, the Sub-Committee shall decide whether to consider the 
matter and make a determination in the absence of the Subject Member, or to 
adjourn the hearing to another date.

Page 107



3

STAGE 1: 

MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT

9. The Sub-Committee must first consider whether or not there are any significant 
disagreements about the facts contained in the IO’s report. If there is no 
disagreement about the facts, the committee can move on to stage 2 of the 
hearing.

10. If there is disagreement, the IO will present the evidence which is relevant to the 
facts in dispute. With the permission of the Sub-Committee, witnesses can be 
called to give relevant evidence and may be asked questions by the IO. The 
Subject Member and the Sub-Committee members may ask questions of the IO 
or any witness.

11. The Subject Member or his/her representative will then present the evidence 
which is relevant to the facts in dispute. With the permission of the Sub-
Committee, witnesses can be called to give relevant evidence and may be asked 
questions by the Subject member. The IO and the Sub-Committee members may 
ask questions of the Subject Member or any witnesses.

12. At any time, the Sub-Committee may question any witnesses, the IO or the 
Subject Member.

13. If the Subject Member disagrees with any relevant fact in the report without 
having given prior notice of the disagreement, he or she must give good reasons 
for not mentioning it before the hearing. After considering the Subject Member’s 
explanation, the Sub-Committee may continue with the hearing, relying on the 
information in the report; may allow the Subject Member to make representations 
about the issue and invite the IO to respond and call witnesses as necessary, or 
may postpone the hearing to arrange for appropriate witnesses to be present.

14. At any stage in the consideration of the matter, the Sub-Committee may ask 
further questions of the IO or the Subject Member or seek further information. 
The other party will be given an opportunity to comment upon the questions 
asked or the responses made.

STAGE 2: 

DID THE SUBJECT MEMBER FAIL TO FOLLOW THE CODE OF CONDUCT?

15. The Sub-Committee will then consider whether, based on its findings of fact, the 
Subject Member has failed to follow the Code. 

16. The Subject Member will be invited to give relevant reasons why the Sub-
Committee should decide that they have not failed to follow the Code. 

Page 108



4

17. The Sub-Committee will then consider any verbal or written representations from 
the IO. 

18. The Sub-Committee may, at any time, question anyone involved on any point 
they raise on their representations. 

STAGE 3

IF THE SUBJECT MEMBER HAS FAILED TO FOLLOW THE CODE OF CONDUCT 
WHAT, IF ANY, SANCTION SHOULD BE IMPOSED? 

19. The Sub-Committee will consider any relevant verbal or written representations 
from the IO and the Subject Member and determine whether in the event of a 
finding that there has been a breach of the Code of Conduct:

 the Sub-Committee should recommend a sanction to Full Council;
 what form any sanction should take.

20. The Sub-Committee may ask questions of the Subject Member and the IO and 
take legal advice, to make sure they have the information they need in order to 
make an informed decision. 

AVAILABLE SANCTIONS

21. The Sub-Committee may impose any of the following sanctions:

 Publish its findings in respect of the Member’s conduct;

 Report its finding to Council for information;

 Recommend to Council that the Member be censured;

 Recommend to the Members group leader (or in the case of ungrouped 
members recommend to Council) that he/she be removed from any or all 
committees or sub committees of the Council;

 Recommend to the Leader of the Council that the Member be removed from 
the Executive, or removed from their portfolio responsibilities;

 Instruct the Monitoring Officer to arrange training for the Member;

 Recommend to Council that the Member be removed from all outside 
bodies, appointments to which they have been appointed or nominated by 
the Council;

Page 109



5

 Withdraw facilities provided to the Member by the Council such as a 
computer, website and/or e-mail and internet access; or

 Placing such restrictions on Members access to staff which may be 
reasonable in the circumstances and in accordance with the Member/Officer 
Protocol provided that such restrictions do not impede the member from 
carrying out their duties as a Councillor

DECISION

22. The Sub-Committee shall then consider in private its decisions with regard to 
stages 1, 2 and 3 above (as appropriate).

23. The Chair will announce the decision of the Sub-Committee. Written notice of the 
findings of the Sub-Committee with reasons will be given as soon as it is reasonably 
practicable to the Subject Member and any person who made an allegation that gave 
rise to the investigation. 

RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE AUTHORITY

24. The Sub-Committee may consider making recommendations with a view to 
promoting higher standards of conduct among members.

Page 110


	Agenda
	4 Consideration of an investigation in connection with the Code of Conduct for Members
	Agenda Item 4 - Appendix 1.
	Agenda Item 4 - Appendix 2.

	4a Audit & Governance Sub-Committee Hearings Procedure

